
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
November 19, 2014

November 19, 2014 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 7
Warrants

Accounts Payable 10
Resolution Accepting the 2014 Concrete Project

Staff Report - Concrete Project Acceptance 23
Resolution Approving Improvement Agreement for Goldenrod
Avenue Railroad Crossing

Staff Report - Goldenrod Railroad Crossing 26
Resolution Declaring the Results of the 2014 General Election

Staff Report - Declaring Results of 2014 General
Election 64

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, December 3, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  
Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep 
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

None 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 
 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 
A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: November 19, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: November 9, 2014 - November 22, 2014: $126,127.45; Other Pay: 
$4,111.47; Overtime: $5,474.21; Standby: $1,202.26; Comp Time Earned: 26.25 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 
1. Nos. 5354-5457: $475,505.17 

2. Excepting: Valley Food Center: #5448 - $207.14 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting the 2014 Concrete Project (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution accepting the 2014 Concrete 
Project and authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Concrete Project Acceptance 
 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Improvement Agreement for Goldenrod Avenue 
Railroad Crossing (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Public Highway 
At-Grade Crossing Improvement Agreement with the Union Pacific Railroad. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Goldenrod Railroad Crossing 
 
 
 
 

3



 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

  

None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Declaring the Results of the 2014 General Election (MR) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review the Fresno County Elections Office canvass for 
Mayor and City Council positions and take the following action: 
 

1. By motion adopt resolution approving the final canvass electing Stephen Hill as 
Mayor for a two-year term and electing Rhonda Armstrong and Gary Yep as 
Council Members each for a four-year term; and 

2. Authorize the City Clerk to perform the Oaths of Office and present Council 
Members with Certificates of Election; and 

3. Council to recognize outgoing Council Members for their years of service; and  

4. Council to accept nominations for Mayor Pro-Tem and make appointment by 
motion. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Declaring Results of 2014 General Election 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Community Services Events (PG) 
 

1. Community Workday – Katey’s Kids Park, December 6, 9:30 a.m.  
2. Photos with Santa – December 6, 10:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m., Kerman Floral 
3. Senior Christmas Luncheon – December 12, 11:00 a.m., Community Center 
4. Breakfast with Santa – December 13, 9:00 – 11:00 a.m., Community Center 
5. KCSO Holiday Food Toy Drive – December 19, 1:00 p.m., Community Center 

 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Mid Valley Disposal Annual Luncheon - December 12, 12:00 p.m. to 2:00 p.m., Harris 
Ranch (LP) 

B. Pageantry of Light Parade - Saturday, December 13, 6:00 p.m. (MR) 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

None 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, November 19, 2014 

6:30 PM  

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

 
Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Dhaliwal (RD), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN), Wilcox (DW)  
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City Attorney 
Blum, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, Finance Director, Public Works 
Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep  

• Call to Order 6:38 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 
except 
BN/DW 

• Invocation NF 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Item 4C 
moved 
before 4A 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  None 
 
6:41 p.m. BN 
arrived 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL None 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
Payroll Report: October 26 - November 8, 2014: $123,272.92; Other Pay: 
$1,692.90; OT: $4,692.55; Standby: $1,116.27; Comp Time Earned: 38.25 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
Nos. 5308-5353: $37,393.04 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers 

Approved 
NF/RD  
(4-0-1) DW 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Updated Purchasing Policy for the City of 
Kerman (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving updated 
Purchasing Policy for the City of Kerman. 
 

E. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending October 31, 2014 (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve monthly investment report as 
presented. 

 

Res 14-64 

 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None   

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 6:43 p.m. 
DW arrived. 

Item 4C moved up on agenda before 4A  

C.  SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding with Fresno County Rural Transit 
Agency for Public Transit Safety and Security Services (LP) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Fresno County Rural Transit Agency for Public Transit 
Safety and Security Services and authorizes the Mayor to execute the 
agreement. 

 

Approved 
NF/RD  
(5-0-0) 

A. SUBJECT: Independent Auditor's Report for Fiscal Year 2013-14 (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Independent Auditor's Report for 
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014. 
 

 

Approved by 
MO DW/BN 
(5-0-0) 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Adopting Residential Design Guidelines (LP) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt a resolution approving the 
Residential Design Guidelines for single-family and multi-family residential 
developments. 

  

 
Approved 
NF/BN  
(5-0-0) 
Res 14-65 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

A. Mid Valley Disposal Annual Luncheon - Friday, December 12, 12:00-2:00 p.m.,   

B. Pageantry of Lights Parade - Saturday, December 13, 6:00 p.m.  

7. CLOSED SESSION None 

8. ADJOURNMENT 7:40 p.m. 

 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 3, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Accepting the 2014 Concrete Project 

RECOMMENDATION   
 
Council by motion adopt resolution accepting the 2014 Concrete Project and authorize the City Engineer to record 
the Notice of Completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The Contractor, Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. has completed the work required for the 2014 Concrete Project. The 
project removed street trees with invasive roots and replaced damaged curb and gutter and sidewalk along several 
streets within the City. The City Public Works Inspector has inspected the improvements required by the project and 
all of the improvements have been completed.   
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The 2014 Concrete Project consisted of the removal of street trees and replacement of damaged concrete curb and 
gutter and sidewalk along several streets. The damage to the curb and gutter and sidewalks was caused by the 
invasive roots of street trees. In addition, the project replaced concrete curb ramps that did not meet Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards. The following streets were included in the project: 
 

1. Stanislaus Avenue: Vineland Avenue to just west of 16th Street 
2. 16th Street: B Street to just north of C Street 
3. Middleton Avenue: 6th Street to 8th Street 
4. 8th Street: Sunset Avenue to Stanislaus Avenue 

 
The work performed on Stanislaus Avenue and 16th Street was included in the base bid for the project. The work on 
Middleton Avenue and 8th Street was an increase in the scope of the project per Council’s direction. 
 
 

23



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 3 
Final Acceptance – 2014 Concrete Project 
  
 
FISCAL IMPACT   
 
The total project cost was $261,000, including engineering and construction management. The base bid (Stanislaus 
and 16th) and added scope (Middleton and 8th) are included in the City’s FY 14-15 Budget as separate projects in the 
amounts of $286,000 and $65,000, respectively, for a combined budget of $351,000. The project is being funded with 
Local Transportation Funds.   
 
The remaining budgeted funds will be used for the installation of new landscape planting and a new irrigation system 
on the south side of Stanislaus Avenue along the City’s storm drainage basin.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING   
 
None Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 

24



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 3 
Final Acceptance – 2014 Concrete Project 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
ACCEPTING IMPROVEMENTS AND AUTHORIZING FILING OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FOR THE 2014 CONCRETE PROJECT 
 
 WHEREAS, Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. has completed the work for the 2014 Concrete Project and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Public Works Inspector has inspected the improvements required by the City and all 
improvements required by the City have been completed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer recommends acceptance of the 2014 Concrete Project and requests Council 
to authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion for the project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY ACCEPTS the 2014 
Concrete Project and authorizes the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 
 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held 
on the 3rd day of December, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
              
        Gary Yep 

 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

25



    
 
 

 City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 3, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving Improvement Agreement with Union Pacific Railroad for Goldenrod Avenue 

Crossing 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Public Highway At-Grade Crossing Improvement Agreement with 
the Union Pacific Railroad. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
Wal-Mart is obligated to install safety improvements at the Goldenrod Avenue crossing of the Union Pacific Railroad 
as part of the Specific Plan approved for their newly constructed store.  The safety improvements will include 
warning lights and gates, concrete planking and widened pavement. Wal-Mart has deposited funds to pay for the 
improvements.  Because the expanded crossing is in the public right of way, the UPRR requires an agreement with 
the City.   
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The current railroad crossing at Goldenrod Avenue has only two lanes of pavement and no warning lights or gates.  
The California Public Utility Commission required the installation of new safety features at the crossing in 
anticipation of increased traffic to and from the Wal-Mart store.  Mitch Covington and Wal-Mart have been working 
with both the Union Pacific Railroad, who owns the right of way and tracks, and San Joaquin Valley Railroad, who 
operates and maintains the facilities, to improve the crossing.  The railroad companies design the improvements and 
require that only qualified contractors of their choosing may bid on the project and perform the construction.   
 
Wal-Mart and the City entered into an agreement for the improvements at the crossing prior to the opening of the 
Wal-Mart store.  Wal-Mart has deposited $370,000 to pay for the improvements.  Under the terms of the previous 
agreement, Wal-Mart will be eligible to be reimbursed $250,000 from the City’s Railroad Crossing Development 
Impact Fee account. 
 
Construction of the crossing will commence four to six months following the approval of this agreement 
 

  

26



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 3 
Railroad Crossing Improvement Agreement  
  
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Following completion of the crossing improvements, Wal-Mart will be eligible to receive reimbursement from the 
City’s Railroad Crossing Development Impact Fee account. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
 

 
  

27



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 3 
Railroad Crossing Improvement Agreement  
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING PUBLIC HIGHWAY AT-GRADE CROSSING 

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, The Union Pacific Railroad Company owns a right of way and railroad track that crosses 
Goldenrod Avenue in the City of Kerman, DOT No. 752967Y, at Railroad Mile Post 193.9; and 
 WHEREAS, the City has required that Wal-Mart improve the Goldenrod Avenue crossing by widening the 
pavement and installing additional safety equipment; and 
 WHEREAS, Union Pacific Railroad Company requires an Improvement Agreement prior to any work being 
done within their right of way, as shown in attached Exhibit. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN approves the Public Highway At-
Grade Crossing Improvement Agreement as substantially shown in Exhibit 1 and authorizes the City Manager to sign 
the agreement on behalf of the City of Kerman. 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
3rd day of December, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
         ________________________ 
         Gary Yep 
         Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY CLERK 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 3, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Marci Reyes, City Clerk 
Subject: Resolution Declaring the Results of the 2014 General Election 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council review the Fresno County Elections Office canvass for Mayor and City Council positions and take the 
following action: 
 

1. By motion adopt resolution approving the final canvass electing Stephen Hill as Mayor for a two-year term 
and electing Rhonda Armstrong and Gary Yep as Council Members each for a four-year term; and 

2. Authorize the City Clerk to perform the Oaths of Office and present Council Members with Certificates of 
Election; and 

3. Council to recognize outgoing Council Members for their years of service; and  
4. Council to accept nominations for Mayor Pro-Tem and make appointment by motion. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The 2014 General Election was held on Tuesday, November 4, 2014; Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 
10263 the Council shall declare the results and install the newly elected officers no later than the fourth Friday after 
the election (November 28th) or no later than the next regularly scheduled city council meeting following 
presentation of the 28-day canvass of the returns or at a special meeting called for this purpose, to declare the 
results and to install the newly elected officers.  
 
The final vote tallies of the 2014 General Election will be presented for the City Council’s review in the form of the 
Elections Official Certificate of Canvass which will be delivered on the 28th day following the election (December 2). 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City Council must adopt the resolution presented for their consideration to ratify the election results so the newly 
elected candidates can rightfully begin the service of their terms. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None 
 
Attachments: 
 
 A. Resolution w/Exhibit 

64



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 3 
Declaring the Results of the 2014 General Election 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
DECLARING RESULTS OF THE 2014 GENERAL ELECTION 

 
 WHEREAS, the General Municipal Election was consolidated with the General Election, 

on Tuesday, November 4, 2014; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the notice of said election was duly and legally given, and all aspects were 

held and conducted and the votes cast thereat received and canvassed, and the returns thereof 

made and declared in the time, form, and manner as required by the general laws of the State 

governing elections in cities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, California Elections Code Section 10263(b) requires that "the governing body 

meet at its usual place of meeting no later than the next regularly scheduled city council meeting 

following presentation of the 28-day canvass of the returns, or at a special meeting called for this 

purpose, to declare the results and to install the newly elected officers"; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council finds that said General 

Consolidated Election was held and conducted in the City of Kerman on November 4, 2014, in 

the time, form, and manner as required by law. 

 

 That there were four (4) voting precincts established for the purpose of holding said 

election, consisting of a consolidation of the regular precincts established for holding general, 

state, and county elections as follows: 

 

1) Consolidated Voting Precincts No. 779, 781, 782, 784. 

2) Number of ballots cast in the City was XXXX. 

3) Names and office of the persons voted for, and the number of votes given to each, are 

shown in the attached Exhibit ‘A’ Statement of Votes Cast and Election Summary 

Report. 

 

65



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 3 
Declaring the Results of the 2014 General Election 
  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT at said General Election, Stephen Hill was elected to 

the office of Mayor for the term of two (2) years; Rhonda Armstrong and Gary K. Yep were 

elected to fill two Council Member seats, each for the term of four (4) years. 

 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Kerman held on the 3rd day of December 2014, by the following vote: 

 

                 AYES:  

       NOES:  

                   ABSENT:  

                  ABSTAIN:  

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 

 

         _________________________ 
         Gary Yep 
         Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 

66


	Agenda
	November 19, 2014
	November 19, 2014

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Accepting the 2014 Concrete Project
	Staff Report - Concrete Project Acceptance

	Resolution Approving Improvement Agreement for Goldenrod Avenue Railroad Crossing
	Staff Report - Goldenrod Railroad Crossing

	Resolution Declaring the Results of the 2014 General Election
	Staff Report - Declaring Results of 2014 General Election


